MOUNT CARMEL

A patace To peZ dacer dealy

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING AGENDA

10.

1.

12.
13.

January 23, 2025 - 5:30 P.M.
City Hall, 100 East Main St.

Public Hearing: Ordinance 24-537 Budget Amendment

Call to Order- Board of Mayor and Aldermen Regular Scheduled Meeting
Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Welcome from the Mayor

Approval and/or Correction of the minutes of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen Meeting dated December
19, 2024, department reports, and monthly financial report.

Approval and/or Correction of the minutes of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen Special Called Meeting
dated January 16, 2025.

Visitors Comments:

All persons wishing to address the Board shall stand and state their name and address and shall be limited to
a brief presentation. The Board may NOT participate in any discussion and cannot vote on the subject you
present. Absent an emergency, the earliest time the Board might discuss and vote on your matter will be at
the next Board meeting. Individuals and/or group representatives who have placed an item on tonight's
agenda will be allowed to make brief comments when that agenda item is opened for discussion.

Old Business:
A. SECOND READING: Ordinance 24-537 Budget Amendment
B. SECOND READING: Ordinance 24-538 Official Depository for City Funds
C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Rules of Order by Resolution 25-643

New Business:
A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: LGIP Investment by Resolution 25-644
B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Mayor's Committee Appointments
Board Comments: Mayor, Vice-Mayor, Aldermen, Staff Comments: City Manager, CMFO, City Attorney

Adjourn



MOUNT CARMEL

ﬂ/adme Zo put doswn 4oeld

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING MINUTES

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee Board of Mayor and Aldermen
was held at Town of Mount Carmel City Hall, 100 East Main Street, on December 19, 2024, at 5:30pm

CALL TO ORDER

5:30 pm by Mayor John Gibson

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Led by Alderman Binstock and Alderman Shugart

ROLL CALL:

BMA

Present

Absent

City Administration Present

Alderman Darby Patrick

Jim Stables, City Manager

Alderman Philip Binstock

Allen Coup, City Attorney

Alderman James Cross

Tyler Williams, CMFO/City Recorder

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

Mayor John Gibson

ANANANENENENAN

WELCOME FROM THE MAYOR

Mayor Gibson welcomed everyone

APPROVAL and/or correction of the November 21, 2024, Board of Mayor and Aldermen

meeting minutes, departmental and financial reports.
Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Vice-Mayor Bare
Approved: All present voting in favor

VISITOR COMMENTS
NONE

OLD BUSINESS
NONE




NEW BUSINESS
A. PRESENTATION: 2022-2023 Audit by David M. Ellis, CPA

Mr. Ellis was unable to attend due to iliness. Presentation postponed until January 2025.

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Adoption of Rules of Order

In an effort to ensure business of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Mount
Carmel, Local Jurisdictional Rules of Order, combined with Roberts Rules of

Order are being offered to ensure expedient and efficient execution of the Town Elected
Board members’ business obligations are met, and the public is served well.

ltem was considered as a discussion point. Will need to be brought before the Board as a
Resolution.

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Binstock
Approved: Al present voting in favor

C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Adoption of Communication Strategies for Elected Town
Officials

To improve the communication process for the staff and elected officials, this item is
proposed to enhance and ensure that all communications are timely, effective, efficient,
and consistent. Also, to reduce the personal vulnerability and liability of public records
requests, and the archiving challenges for elected officials who are currently utilizing
personal devices and personally developed email addresses while conducting official
business of the Town of Mount Carmel.

Motion made to purchase tablets and official town emails for all elected officials.

Motion: Vice-Mayor Bare
Second: Alderman Patrick

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

ANIRENEANEAN

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam v

®

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

Mayor John Gibson Abstain




D. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: TDEC attorney Choice and Direction Letter

The attorney representing the Town in our Commissioner’s Order for our Wastewater Plant
with the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) is leaving the
firm of Burr & Forman LLP and relocating to Thompson Burton PLLC. With his exit from
Burr & Forman, LLP we have received a “Choice and Direction” letter which requires us to
make a choice on how to proceed.

Motion to select “Option 3,” which is to transfer matter(s) to William Penney at Thompson,
along with any unapplied trust accounts, and terminate client relationship with Burr &
Forman LLP” and to authorize an additional 10 hours of paid attorney time.

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Patrick

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIANIANIENIENIENEAN

Mayor John Gibson

E. FIRST READING: Ordinance 24-537 Budget Amendment

This amendment reflects changes in the FY25 budget due to grants being awarded to the
Town of Mount Carmel Fire Department and Police Department. The Fire Department was
awarded a $420,000.00 CDBG grant for the purchase of a fire truck ($80,000 match
required). The Fire Department was also awarded a $7,795.00 grant for the purchase of a
fire skid unit (no match required). The Police Department was awarded a $10,000.00 TN
Highway Safety Office High Visibility Grant (no match required).

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Gilliam

AYES NAYS OTHER
Alderman Darby Patrick v
Alderman Philip Binstock v
Alderman James Cross v
Alderman Mindy Shugart v
Alderman Jim Gilliam v




Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

v

Mayor John Gibson

v

FIRST READING: Ordinance 24-538 Official Depository for City Funds

This ordinance amends the Municipal Code to properly reflect the T.C.A. requirements for

official depositories of municipal funds.

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Binstock

AYES

NAYS

OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

AN NN NN

Mayor John Gibson

. FIRST READING: Ordinance 24-539 Purchasing Policy

This ordinance will implement best practices recommended by the University of
Tennessee Municipal Technical Advisory Service, allowing for better efficiency,

effectiveness, and accountability in accomplishing the purchasing actions for the Town.

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Patrick

AYES

NAYS

OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIENIENIENEENENEAN

Mayor John Gibson




. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: 2025 Community Outreach Event Schedule by Resolution
24-641

Motion to amend the schedule to add Veteran's Day and Law Enforcement Week.

Motion: Alderman Gilliam
Second: Alderman Patrick
Approved: Al present voting in favor

Motion to approve the amended 2025 Community Outreach Event Schedule by
Resolution 24-641

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Patrick

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIANEENENENENAN

Mayor John Gibson

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Brush and Large Item Pickup by Resolution 24-642

This resolution sunsets previous resolutions addressing brush and large item pick-up and
the fee assessment and collection for large item pickup, replacing them in their entirety.

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Patrick

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIANEENE NI NENAN

Mayor John Gibson




J. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Town Administrator Agreement
Motion to table for further discussion and address in January 2025.

Motion: Vice-Mayor Bare
Second: Alderman Patrick
Approved: All present voting in favor

K. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Wastewater Treatment Plant Sludge Removal

Our wastewater consultant has advised that we need sludge hauling again and is seeking
to have 10 loads removed from the plant, which is approximately 2,400 gallons per load, or
24,000 total. The per load fee is $750, or $7,500 total.

Motion: Alderman Binstock

Second: Alderman Cross

Approved: All present voting in favor
COMMENTS:

Mayor John Gibson- Reminded everyone of the Elected Officials training in January, upcoming MTAS
strategic planning, and the Santa Run on December 21

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare- Merry Christmas and Happy New Year

Alderman Darby Patrick- Merry Christmas and Happy New Year

Alderman Mindy Shugart- Merry Christmas and Happy New Year

Alderman James Cross- Merry Christmas and Happy New Year

Alderman Philip Binstock- Merry Christmas and Happy New Year

Alderman Jim Gilliam- Merry Christmas and Happy New Year

City Manager Jim Stables- Thanks for 100 productive days. Merry Christmas

City Recorder Tyler Williams- Thanks for cooperation of everyone during first few months. New website is
live. Merry Christmas

City Attorney Allen Coup- Pleasure seeing new board come together and work efficiently. Merry Christmas
and Happy New Year



ADJOURN
Motion: Alderman Shugart at 6:20 pm
Second: Vice-Mayor Bare
Approved: All present voting in favor

Approve:

John Gibson, Mayor

Aftest:

Tyler Williams, City Recorder



MOUNT CARMEL

.?(fﬁvrﬁ 7 pAt o Joo¥i

FINANCIAL REPORT

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TN

Month ending 12/31/2024

GENERAL FUND:

Checking Account (First Community)

Checking Account (First Horizon)

LGIP Investment Account

Capital Outlay Savings (First Horizon)

Drug Fund (First Horizon)

Special Drug Fund (First Horizon)

TOTAL:

SEWER FUND:

Checking Account (First Community)
Checking Account (First Horizon)
Savings/Bond Reserve 2014 (First Horizon)

Savings/Sewer Savings 2014 (First Horizon)

TOTAL:

BALANCE:

$9,094.50

$2,973,878.11

$4,046,411.72

$387,120.08

$10,034.16

$1,038.95

$7,427,577.52

ALANCE:

$1,574.63

$1,052,468.61

$104,211.08

$525,922.96

$1,684,177.28

GRAND TOTAL CASH ON HAND:

Current Savings Rate: 3.16%
Current LGIP Rate: 4.56%

$9,111,754.80



00°0 00°0 000 QIWAIY
00°0 %000 (00°009'T) 000 (00°009°T) (00'009'T) 9zL
00°0 000 00'0 3D19WWI0D JO Jaquieyd 0D subjmeH
00'0 %00°00T 00°0 00°005C (00'005'2) (00°005'2) ves
000 000 000 uofeuo( SUSZRYJ 101U
00°0 %000 (00°000°€€) 00°0 (00°000°€€) (00°000°€€) geL
00°0 000 00°0 Aouaby 22.nosay UBWINK NL 1St
00°0 %000 (00°005'2) 00°0 (00°005'2) (00°005'2) [4 44
00°0 000 00°0 P1IsIq uawdoppAaQ Ul 151
00'0 %8196 (00°59) 00°S€9'1 (00'00£'T) (00'00£'T) ozL
00°0 000 000 sabueyd 201ISS Huegq
LTTHTT %95°€66 LTTL0T LTTET'T (o0'0z) (00'0zT) 169
00'0 000 00°0 wesbold A1ajes
00°0 %000 (00°005'2) 000 (00'005'2) (00°005'2) 165
00°0 000 00°0 $150) [esieiddeay
00°0 %66'S8 (29:092'T) 8E'6EL'L {00'000°6) (00°000'6) 16§
00°0 000 000 2oueInsut
000 %86°FS (52°9£7'9%) §/°€2L'89 (00°000°52T) (00 000°52T) 015
0070 00°0 000 sa0IARS Bulaauibul
000 %000 (00°000'%) 000 (00'000'%) (00°000'%) 514
000 000 000 SSDIAISS UOHEJIUNWILOD) 1330 puYy auoydsjaL
10'821 %8T'TE {s£'190'2) ST'8¢6 (00"000°€) (00°000°€) ¥
00°0 000 00°0 n
8/'102'T %b0LE (oz'zee'tT) 0£'£99'9 (00'000'8T) (00"000'8T) (124
00°0 000 00°0 uogefsy d1qnd
004 %bE'T8 (£6'¥99'%) £0°SEE’0T (00'000'52) (00°000'52) 9€T
00°0 000 000 seng
00°0 %08'28 (00°889) 00°CIE'E (00°000'%) (00'000'%) S€T
JUSWIUIDAOY [RIBUDD Q00TY
[urIqUNDU] pasn % ajqejieAy spung saduesquinduz 39bpng jejol sjuawpusuy P3(q0 12JU’d) P3(qo
/1eny /seimipuadx3 /1e6png jeuiblo qns 350D
ainW aia
%0008 :anpeledwo) Ajyiuow OTT :pund
L1 40 T 3bed +Z07Z 1aquisdag
Id 6T:€ 5202/9/T awi) /ajeq saouesqUNDUZ pue saimIpuadxy Jo Juswajels 91 :Aq pajeasd
SWellIp JBJAL HEL) [ow1e) jJunop Jo UMo) ainyipuadxg jo Juswiiels DD :aweN djejdwa]



00°0 00'0 00°0 SDIAIBS [EDIPBIN
00°0 %00°0 (00'002) 00'0 (00°002) (00°002) 152
000 00°0 00'0 abpnc AD
00°00% %0005 (00"00v'?) 00'00v'C (00°008'%) (00'008'%) 0sz
00'0 00°0 000 BuisipaApy
0b'SET %61'€C (0¥'¥0£°D) 09'569 (00°000°€) (00°000°€) 152
000 000 000 sang
80°¢8 %IE'8 (26'916) 80°€8 (00°000'T) (00'000°T) SET
000 000 000 S3DIAIDS GOM
00°0 %000 (007000'T) 000 (00°000°T) (00°000'T) L12
00°0 00'0 00'0 SSOIAIBS JRUIR]
L¥'06 %0LLE (59°'2¥4) GE'TSk (00°002'1) (00'002'1) 91¢
00°0 000 00°0 loAe|y puy uewusply JO S934
T0°€SZ %8b'8S (szz18'9) TLL8T'8 {00°000%1) (00'000"%1) 19T
00°'0 000 00°0 Butuiel| puy uoednp3 saojduiy
00°0 %00'TT (00°068) 00°011 (00°000°1) (00°000'1) 8yl
00°0 00'0 000 3ouelInsuy JuawAojdwaun
1€el %Sb el (bL2eT) 97'/9¢ (00°008) (00°005) Vg
00°0 00°0 000 uejd Juawauay dvAo|dws
78'6S1°T %20'1¢ (80°€8¥'¥0) 76'915'9 (00°000'1€) (00'000°1€) 34
00°0 00°0 000 2oueINsu] aaAojdwg
L6'£95'S %00°19 (95'055°21) ¥ 6vb'LC (00'000'St) (00'000°SP) Wl
00'0 000 000 (a1eYS S 2A0)dwiT) ISRO
st %01 TH (1£°082'11) 62'612'8 (00'000'02) (00*000°02) 27!
000 000 000 sobem
09'6£0'T2 %971l (25'801'2rT) 8b'168°/01 (00'000°052) (00°000°052) 121
uonjeljsiulwpy [ejoueuld  00STH
00°0 000 000 juawdinbgy
00°0 %09' T (00'000°9%T) 00°000'%0T (00°000°052) (00'000°052) 0v6
ueiquinouz pasn % ajqejieAy spung s9duelquundul 3a96png |ejol sjudwpusuly walqo 193U »3(qo
/lempy /sainypuadxy /3e6png jeulblio qns 150D
alnW ala
9%00°0S :aAieIedwo) AjYIUop OTLT : pung
LT J0 7 abed $z0z Joquisdaqg
Wd 6T:€ §202/9/T :ow) /ajeq seduelqunoug pue saunipuadx3 Jo Juswajels a1 :Aq pajeasd
swie|[|Ipn J9JAL HEIT)] {auLie) JUNo JO UMO | ainyipuadx3 JO JUBWIeIS DO dweN ejdwa)



000 00°0 00'0 sabem
LT'1S8'ST %IT'8E (g€ 0s¥'22D) £9°6bSLET (00°000°09€) (00'000°09¢) 121
juswiedag dljod 00TZP
00°0 000 000 juswdinbaHoddns/ssindwo) maN
000 %L8'€T (zozb1'n) 86'/S€E {00"005'T) (00'005'T) b6
000 00°0 000 juswdinbg
000 %ETLE (1£v15'D) 62°S8b'T (00°000'%) (00"000'%) 0v6
000 000 000 Jaidoy sses Bupelsadp
VXA %L6'0E (6+°5£0'1) 159 (00°005'T) (00°005'T) S79
00°0 000 00'0 SNO3UE|[R3S!IA
607292 %0b'9TT 06559 06'59"p (00°000'p) (00°000'p) 6L
00'0 00°0 00°0 s3|ddns samog Asulld
000 %29°LE (eezLe'T) £9'Lt8 (00°002'2) (00'002'2) [452
00°0 00°0 00'0 afeisod puy saiddns U0
¥S'0LL %bS €9 (§5'916'0) Sb'€80'S (00'000'8) (00°000°8) (1]43
000 000 000 $334 UOISSIWWIOD
€101 %996/ (18'90%) 6T'€65'T (00°000'2) (007000'2) 86
000 000 000 fones]
000 %bb'L (¥9'21£'D) 9€°/81 (00°005'2) (00'005'2) 082
000 000 000 sbuip|ing asueusjulely puy Jieday
00°05¢ %/8'S (0¥'$90'2b) 09'SE6'C (00'000°05) (00"000°0S) 992
00°0 000 000 sao|eg Buluoz puy bujuueld
00°0 %0S5°1S (00°5£2'2) 00°S¢L'L (00'000°sT) (00°000ST) VT4
00°0 00'0 00°0 yoddng alemyos/aiempiel seindwo)
000 %60°€T (29vLE'Er) 8€'G20'ET {00'00t95) (00°001'95) §57
000 000 000 s334 Bunipny puy Gununody
00°€€8’6T %69°'1S {61 €ce'sT) ST°9/9'0T (00 000'0t) (00 000°0%) 374
000 000 000 saolAIRS [eba
05°2€9'€ %£9°'89 (00°00%'6) 00°009°02 (00"0000€) (00"000'0€) 414
@sueiquinoug Pasn % a]qejieAy spunyg sajuelqunduy j1obpng jejol sjuswpudWy 139(q0 J9jud) Paiqo
/yempy /seinipuadx3 /3e6png |euiblo qns 350D
ailw aia
%0005 :3Aneiedwo) AlYjuol OTIT : pun4
LT Jo g 96ed $20T 13quiad3qg
Wd 6T:€ S202/9/1 iowi]/eleq sadueiqunduz pue saimipuadx3 Jo Juswalels IV :Aq pajeasd
SWeljlipn JDJAL 9sn [ouue) Junop JO UMOoj| alnyipuadx3 Jo Juswalels DO oweN ejdwad]



00°0 00'0 000 sa||ddng bunesado
8Z'9bT %/8'98 (£9'959) LEEPEY (00'000'S) (00°000'S) 0ze
00°0 000 000 abelsod puy saiddns ado
(12°68) %PE'90T 61061 6T'06T'E (00'000°€) {00"000°¢) 01€
000 00'0 000 fonell
66'9G€ %Sb'8¢E (58'8€5'T) ST'196 (00°005'D) (007005'2) 08¢
000 000 000 sBuip|ing sdueuajulely puy Jledey
00°0 %E0'T6 (z8's61'T) 8T'+08'ET (00°000ST) (00"000°5T) 992
000 00°0 00°0 voddng atemyos/aiempleH Jandwo)
00°€62°9 %08'78 (9£°6£5'2) ¥9°0Zb"CT (00°000°5T) (00'000°5T) §ST
000 000 000 SJIAIBS [EDIP3IN
000 %00°9t (00"0£2) 00°0£¢ (00°00%) (00'009) 16¢
00°0 000 000 SSDIAIRS UONEdIUNWILIOY) J3L30 puy suoydajaL
€LLEE %0C P (81'81€'E) 78'159'C (00°000'9) (00°000°9) (74
000 000 000 woo3
000 %00'0 (00°00+'1) 000 (00°00t'T) (00°00t'T) 612
000 000 00°0 SIIAIRS JBUIRIU]
866/ %666 (01°009) 06'66€ {00'000'T) {00"000°T) 91
000 00°0 000 Bujuiel). puy uonednp3 sakojdw
00°00€ %95°€2T 00'090'T 00°095's (00°005t) (00°005'%) 8rT
00°0 000 000 2ouensut JuswAojdwaun
8207 %EQLT (¥8vTH) 91°58 (00°00%) (007005) g
00°0 000 000 ue|d Juawaunay aaAojdw3
91'S0L'T %EL0T (¥8'6v0'8€) 91°056'6 (00°000'8t) (00 000°8t) 5!
000 000 000 aoueInsu] adAojdwg
L1'99T'€ %081 (ze'2v0'63) 89°LSb'9T (00'005'52) (00"005'54) wl
00°0 000 000 (34eys sJaholdwz) 1seQ
€1°966'T %ST'SE (86'€5H'61) 20"9p5°0T (00°000°0€) (00"000°0€) w1l
000 000 000 sabepy SWIHBAQ
8€'€98'T %b9'9b (og'1£9°01) 0£'82€'6 (00°000°02) (00'000'02) [44}
ajuelqundug P3SN % ajqejieAy spung saJuelqunouy 1ebpng |e10L sjuswpusawy P3Mqo lajua) Pelqo
/1lempy /seimypuadxy /3o6png |euiblp qns 350D
alwW ai

%0005 :aAnesedwo) Ayiuol OTT : Ppund
/T Jo { abeq $T0T 49quiadaq
Wd 61:€ S§20C/9/1 2wl /a1eq sajueiquindu3 pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juawles 91 iAq pageatd
SWIel||IM AL HEN jouLIe) Junop JoO UMOL aInipuadx3 4O Juswalels Do aweN aejdwe)



00°0 00°0 000 (sreys saholdw3) Ise0
£€9°025 %866 (£5'102'%) 1'86L'T (00°000°2) (00°0002) Wi
000 00'0 000 sabem
¥£'508'9 %€E8'6E (81'25€'SS) T8'4%9'9¢€ (00°000°26) (00'000'26) 121
juswypedag ad  00ZTh
00'0 000 00°0 uswdinb3y
000 %000 (00°000'0) 00°0 (00°000'2) (00°000'2) 0p6
puny bru@ 6TTZY
00°0 00°0 00°0 juswdinbg
00£TT'LS %8E'S6 (00°€£2'D) 00°£22'LS (00°000°09) (00"000'09) ov6
00°0 00°0 00°0 12-0Z A INVYD ALTTISISIA TH OSHL
000 %00°0 (00°000'S) 000 (00'000's) (00'000°s) S0Z
00'0 000 00'0 1a1dop asea bunessdo
8/'SS %08'8T (90'29'T) ¥6'SLE (00'000'0) (00"0002) §79
000 00'0 000 sabiey) Ajajes J0 1deg
S6'10C %85°8 (Le2v6's) €9°/5S (00°005'9) (00°005°9) 095
00°0 000 00°0 Snosuey[esIiy
00°052 %Zt'89 (eLety) 829201 (00°005'T) (00°005'T) 6%
00°0 000 0070 asuadx3 oipey
v 81 %10 (95°18b'F) ¥b'81 (00°005't) (00"005'%) 9¢eg
00°0 00'0 00°0 asuadxg end
¥6'2L6 %EY'9C (2Tp1L'vT) 88'582'S (00°000°02) {00°000°02) 33
00°0 000 000 asuadxg bunessdo spIYEA
06'19b %1791 (szL¥6'00) S/'T50'% (00°000'527) (00°000'52) 0€e
00'0 000 000 SarddNS 13¥01t-3
00'0 %00°0 (00°008) 00°0 (007008) (00°008) 62€
00'0 000 000 sunojiun puy Buop
66'69T %ES'ITT SE'E/9 SE'E/9P (00"000'%) (00°000"%) T4
00°0 00'0 00°0 SIS3A 4001d 39IINg
00'SL7'T %S/'€9 (00'524) 00°SLT'T (00°000'2) (00°000'2) T4
@suelquinoug Pasn % a|qejieAy spund saouelqunoug 1ebpng [ejol Ssjudwpusawy P3(qo lajua) p2(q0
Jienpy /saanmyipuadxgy /1obpng jeulbliQ qns 350D
dinW aia
%00'0S :aAgeledwio] Apuon OTT :pung
/T Jo g abeq 20z JPquiadag
INd 6T:€ S202/9/T :awiL/ajeq sedueIqWINduUz pue saimipuadxy Jo Juswialels 91 :Aq pmgeasd
SLUB||IM SBJAL HELT) JouLIE) JUNOJY JO UMO| aInYipuadx3 JO JUdWIE]S DO :dwenN ajejdwa)



00°0 00°0 000 swuoyun puy Buiyiop
000 %6L'St (5¢'929'1) §9'€/ET (00'000°€) (00°000°€) 143
0070 00'0 00'0 sa|jddns bunessdo
98'8Zh %6C Eh (8T'HET'T) 78'598 (00'000"2) (00°000'2) 114
000 00°0 000 abeisod puy saiddng =040
00°0 %S5'19 (9+'+8¢) $5°S19 (00°000'T) (00°000'T) 01€
000 000 00°0 S3DIAIIS [eNPRIIU0D
000 %05°£9 (00°059) 00°0S€'T (00°000'0) (00°000'70) 062
00°0 000 000 Bunsay eyso
05'6€8'€ %Sb'85 (bevee's) 99'S/9'y (00°000°8) (00°000°8) 182
00°0 000 000 [erelL
000 %6085 (01°6TH) 06°085 (00'000'T) (00"000'T) 08¢
00°0 00°0 000 sbuipjing soueusiulely puy Jleday
00°0 %LT'10T 10°€€S T0'€ES"'2h (00'000°2k) (00°000°2¥) 997
000 00°0 00°0 Hoddng atempos/alempieH 1andwo)
00°0 %8H'TT (€£559'7) LTHHE (00°000°€) (00'000°€) §5C
00°0 00'0 000 S3DIMIDS [EDIPDIN
00°0 %00°0T (00'05%) 00°0S (00005) (007005) 15¢
00°0 000 00°0 SOIISS UOHEIUNWIWOD JBYI0 puy auoydsfaL
L6'0F %29 (sz°0ep) S/'69€ (00°008) (00°008) 574
00°0 000 00°0 semN
€569 %TE'EC (+9'696'6) 9€"0£0'E (00'000°€T) (00'000°€T) 1| 74
00°0 000 00°0 apeied/suoneRy dlignd
TS'EEY'E %St 1T AT X34 TS'EEP'E (00"000°€) (00°000°€) 8€T
00°0 00°0 000 seng
000 %0007 (00"0S%) 00°0S (00°005) (00°005) 14
00°0 000 00’0 Bujutes] puy uoneanp3 sa/ojdwy
ov'Ly %b0'0F (09°265°€) 0b'20v'T (00°000°9) (00"000°9) g
000 00°0 000 @ouelnsut JuswAojdwaun
61°0T %T0"bT (v6'6Th) 900 (00'00%) (00°005) Vg
dduesquinduy pasn % ajge[leAy spung saoueiqunoug 306png jejol sjuswpusawy P3lq0 19ju’d) »a(qo
/1enyy /seamyipuadxy /1°6png jeuiblo qns 350D
alwW aia

%0005 raAnesedwo) Alyuon OTT : puny
LT Jo 9 9bed 20T 1aquiadaqg
IWd 6T:€ 5202/9/1 sl /ajeq seoueiquindug pue saimypuadx3 jo juswajels I :Aq pageasd
SWelIM J9[AL 3sn) jouLIe) Junop Jo umo) aumipuadx3 Jo Juswalels DO :awen ejdwal



000 00°0 000 530IAISS UOREDIUNWILIOY JB3YI0 puy auoydajpL
L6°0b %bT T (L1€5¢) £8'9¢ (00°009) (00°009) ST
000 000 00°0 SaIBN
000 %000 (00*001) 00'0 (00'00T) (00"00T) 0ve
00°0 000 000 senq
000 %000 (00°00T) 000 (00°00T) (00"00T) S€T
00°0 000 000 5334
00°set %SL'€S (00°00£'€) 00°00€'y (00°000°8) (00"000°8) 01
00'0 000 000 Buiuiel) puy uoeonpz asAojdwz
000 %000 (00"001) 000 (co'001T) (0o0'001) 8bT
00'0 000 00'0 aoueInsur JuswAodwaun
000 %000 (00°00T) 00'0 (00*001) (00"001) Yig!
000 00°0 000 (210ys s saAojdw3) Iseo
6ELTT %IE by (8z's£8) TLr99 (00°005°T) (00°005'T) i
00°0 000 000 sobem
€SPES'T %I1°1S (18'01€'8) 61°689'8 (00'000°21) (00°000°£T) ¥4
juswpedaq [013U0D jewuy  00bVZTY
000 000 000 juswdinbg
80°9/6'C %SLT8 (62°£00'52) 1£'266'611 (00°000'5¥'T) (00°000's¥'T) ov6
000 000 000 Snosue|[=osiiy
0062 %0€"0ET 00°€0€’T 00°€0€'e (00'000'T) (00°000'T) 6L
00°0 00'0 00'0 Juswdinby juawyedaq aii4
00°0 %99'+8 (56'19£D) 50'8€¢'sT (00°000°8T) (00°000°8T) whe
00'0 000 00°0 asuadxg olpey
00°'0 %0T'v8 (00°564) 00°502'p (00°000'S) (00°000'S) 9ge€
000 000 000 asuadxg [on
£6'09¢C %Sb'SE (£0%€£8'€) £6'921°C (00°0009) (00'000'9) 1€€
00'0 00'0 000 asuadxg buneiadQ spPIYsA
Lb'SE6'E %E6°6€ (9£°020'81) ¥9'6£6'TT (00'000°0€) (00°000°0€) 0€€
aJsuelquinoul pasn % 3|qejieAy spung sajuelquniuz yebpng |ejol sjuswpudwy Pelqo 19JuU3d) walqo
/ienpy /saimypuadx3 /326png |euibliQ qns 350D
alwW dlA
%0005 :aaneseduwio] Ayjuoly OTT : puny
LT Jo £ obeq tzoz 1aquadag
Wd 6T € §20¢/9/T owy /a3eq sddueIquINdUz pue saamipuadxy Jo Judwajels 91 :Aq pajeas)
Swellip DAL HEL | [uLie) Junojy Jo UMo) aimpuadxg Jo Juswalels DO iSwepN agejdwal



00°'0 000 000 (a1eys sahojduil) 1seQ
9p'9LE'T %000t (06'618'TT) 01'088'2 (00°00£'6T) (00°00£'6T) 82!
00°0 00°0 000 sabeMm SWIHAAQ
6€°68Y %SP'ES (65220 T°2£9'C (00°000°s) (00°000°S) w
00°'0 000 000 sabem
8T°TH6'8T %I v (zr'1L2'0vT) 88'87L0TT (00°000'150) (00'000°152) 121
513315 puy shkemybiH 00TED
00°0 000 00'0 Ssnoaue|iRos|iy
00°0 %09'L (0z'808) 08'Tt (00°055) (00°0585) 6L
000 000 00'0 sayddns Bunesdo
00°0 %09°C (10°8v6'T) 661G (00°000"2) (007000'2) oze
00°0 00°0 000 uonljowsq
000 %00°0 (00'000's2) 000 (00°000'52) (00"000'52) 697
000 00'0 00'0 sanq
00°S80°€ %60°¥0T $9'SPET $9'SbT'PE (00°006°Z¢) (00'006'2€) (14
00°0 000 00°0 Buiujes) puy uopednp3 s4ojdw3
00'0 %00°0 (00°009'0) 000 (00°009'7) (00°009'2) 8bT
juwabeuepy Jajemuiols fuonpadsuy buipjing Oy
00°0 000 000 uswdinb3
000 %000 (00°005'%) 000 (00°005%) (00°005%) ov6
000 000 00'0 asuadxg [ond
8c°88 %60°2€ (¥9°59£'T) 9€°pER (00°009°2) (00°009'2) 1€€
000 000 00'0 asuadxy Bunesado SpPIYRA
000 %9E'T9 {00's2p) 00°S£9 (00°001'T) (00'001'T) 0€€
00°0 000 000 swoyun puy Buipopd
00°0 %00°0 (00'001) 00°0 (00°00T) (00'001) 9z¢
00°0 000 000 saiddns Bunesado
000 %000 {00001) 000 (o0"001) (00-001) 1143
000 000 000 SBJIAISS [EDIPDI
00°0 %000 (00'001) 00°0 (00'00T) (0000T1) 162
oueiqundul P3sM % a|qejieAy spund s9duelquunduy 1o6png [ejol sjusuwipuswy Palqo A2jua) Pafqo
/1empy ' /seimipuadx3 /3e6png jewibuo qns 150D
alw alA
%00°05 :aaiesedwo) Ajjuop OIT : pung
LT Jo g 3beq 20z Joquiadag
Wd 61:€ §202/9/1 awil/eleq sadueliquinoug pue sainjipuadxy jo Juswjels VI :Aq pajeas)
SWel||Im J9JAL HEL JowIE) JUNOY JO UMO] ainypuadx3 Jo Juswalels DO :aweN ajejdwa)



000 000 000 swuojiun puy Buiyio
§6'995 %T0°09 (1'66L'T) £5'004'C {(00'00S'P) (00'00S %) 9ze
000 000 000 sayddns Bunessdo
62'89% %8b' Ty (£5'189'P) €p'81E'E (00"000'8) (00°000'8) (114
00'0 00'0 000 abeisog puy solddng a0
00°0 %0¢C'69 (00'¥ST) 00"9b€ (00°00%) (00°005) 1] 83
000 000 000 Buises Juswdinby
€818 %8 b1 (¢£z'186'0) €/'81S (00°00S'€) (00°005°€) ¥62
00°0 000 000 [erelL
00°0 %000 (00°000'T) 000 {00°000'T) (00"000'1) 08¢
000 00°0 00'0 538945 Uy Speoy adueusjulRly puy Jiedey
000 %00°'C (00°00£P1) 00°00€ (00"000'sT) (00'000°ST) 892
000 000 00°0 sbulp|ing adueuSjuIRI puy Jleday
LT'EEE %6E"EL (ze864) 89'102'C (00°000°€) (00°000°€) 992
00°'0 00°0 000 SIDIAIRS (eDIPAl
000 %00'0P (00"00€) 007002 (00005} (00"00%) 18T
00°0 000 000 SEDIAISS UOIEDIUNWIWID B0 puy auoydapL
10402 %00"H (01°895'1) 06'1€2'T (00"008'2) (00°008'0) S¥C
00'0 000 000
44l 314 %L8'TC (€2'985'9) LLEYE'T (00°005'8) (00"005'8) 174
000 000 00°0 S3IIAIRS JRUISIU]
XA VA %I18'Zy (S8'€p1'T) §1'958 (00°000'2) (00°000°2) 912
000 00°0 00°0 Bujuie| puy uoednp3 asAojdwy
00°0 %00°0 (00'005°1) 000 (00"005°T) (00°005'T) vl
00°0 000 000 aouelnsu] juswAojdwaun
00°0 %00°0 (00°008) 00°0 (00008) (00005) ig)
00°0 000 000 ueld Juawa.Ry saAojdw3
vt %b1°9¢ (82'268'70) 247201'8 (007000'1€) (00"000'1€) €vT
00°0 00°0 00°0 3ouelnsuj sakojdwy
Sb1E6'C %L8'1S r2¥12'00) 92'S8.'1¢ (00"0002k) (00°00072k) w1
JdueIqUINDU] Pasn % a|qejieay spung saouelqunoug 1obpng |ej0Q sjuawWpuswy Pp3(qo 193ua) pa(qo
/1enpy /seannpuadxy /1e6png [euiblio qns 150D
ain ala

%00"0S :9Ajjeledwo) Ajyiuop OTT :puny
/T J0 6 abeg tzoz Joquiadag
Wd 6T:€ §202/9/1 1owy /a3eq saduelquinduz pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juawajels oI :Aq pajeasd
Swel||ipn 9jAL HEL ] [oWwe) JUNOjY JO UMOL aJnyipuadxg Jo Juswajels DO :owepN ejdwal



000 000 000 sabep sWIHaAQ
00°0 %ILT F12eb'T) 98'/90'T (000052 (00°005'2) [44!
000 . 000 000 sabem
LD %L0°6b (8£'6£1'97) 79'022'se (00'00¥'1S) (00°00%'1S) 121
BuipA>ay puy d1seM PIIOS  00ZEP
00°0 00°0 000 juswdinb3
000 %EE E0T 8b'99T'S 85°991°01 (00"000°s) (00°000's) ov6
00°0 00°0 000 Buined
9£'8€8 %89'9 (¥9'199°9%) 9€'8€E’E {00°000°05) (00°000°05) 1€6
000 00°0 000 sayiddns puy sjelsale|
00°0 %66°CT (68'101'92) 11°868°¢ (00°000°0£) (00'000°0€) 00b
000 00'0 000 aoueusjuely WbIT owel
00'b8¢ %0761 (00'979'T) 00'%8€ (00'000'0) (00°000'2) €ve
00°0 00'0 000 sa)|ddns puy sHed ubis
00'%0T %b9'62 (69'829'S) TETLET (00°000°8) (00°000'8) we
00°0 00°0 000 bunybn 1sans
$9'¥iT %8C'LE (€2°6£1°09) £2'028'6¢C (00'000°08) (00"000°08) T
Plv 199135 L3S 06TER
00°0 000 000 juawdinby
00°0 %€E6°56 (1+'89£'6) 65°1€9'02¢ (00'000°0£2) (00"000°0€2) ov6
00°0 000 000 Buined
00°005'2 %/LS°8L (ozveL'0L) 08'592'65¢ (00'000°0£€) (00'000°0€€) 1€6
00°0 00'0 000 lledsy abeuelq
000 %000 (00°000'1) 000 (00°000°T) (00°000'T) [4:i2
00°0 000 00°0 SNoB3Ue||SISIKY
000 %E6'T6 (v00) 92626 (00°000'T) (00"000'T) 6L
00°0 000 00°0 asuadxy |ond
6L°85t'T %L8"Cy (1z'566'61) 64'%00'ST (00°000'€) (00'000's€) €€
000 00°0 000 asuadxg bunerado apiyaa
9b°660°C %CE'8E (8£°81%'ST) TC18s’6 (00°000'52) (00°000'52) (1}x3
dueiqgunouz pasn % ajqejieAy spung saouelqunouy 3196png JejoL sjuawpusuy P3[qo J9ua) p3lqo
[ienpy /sainmyipuadx3 /3e6png |euiblio qns 350D
aliW aia
%0005 :aAesedwo) Ajyuop oIT : pung
/1 Jo 0T 3beq tZ0Z Joquiadaq
Wd 6T:€ §202/9/1 ow) /areq sadsuelquinouz pue saimipuadx3 Jo juswajels 93] :Aq pajeas)
SWwel||im DAL BELT ] |oune) JUNojy JO UMOo) 3.nyipuadxg Jo Juawalels Do :oweN 3ejdwa]



00°0 000 00°0 uojesadQ puy juawdoPAsQ Yed
£9'9/8 %6L"6€ (Le'€T1'98) £9'0/8'€T (00000°09) (00°000°09) Y4
000 000 000 aseyoind puet
00'0 %000 (00*000°00%) 00'0 (00'000°00%) (00"000°00p) STL
000 00'0 00°0 Snoaue|(zos|iy
0070 %05°€6T YLEET vLE8Y (00'052) (00°052) 6L
00'0 000 00'0 saiddns bunesrsdo
GE'S0€ %0E"€T (£5'05T'T) £Y'6bE (007005'T) (00"005'7) 1143
00°0 000 000 Yed [2LOWS|Y 1B UBISISA
000 %000 (00'000'T) 00°0 (00'000'T) (00'000'7) 00€
00°0 000 000 sanaN
SE'TSY %L6'TT (86°509'2T) S'P6E°C (00°000°02) (00°000°02) 0¥
uoneanay ovbit
00°0 000 000 asuadxg bupesadQ apiysA
6€°95T %SEHT (b 66€°LT) £5°009'S (00°000°€2) (00'000°€7) 0g€
000 00°0 00°0 sa||ddns Bunessdo
06°€8 %95°€€ (0z'zeg) 08291 (00°008) (00°00%) (1743
000 00°0 000 SIDIAIDS |eNPeIIU0)
000 %90 TP (SZ°90b'¥HT) S/'€65'001 (00'000'5¥2) (00°000'5¥2) 067
00°0 00°0 000 SSDIAIBS [BDIP3IY
000 %000 (00'00T) 000 (00r00T1) (00'001) 152
0070 00°0 00°0 UuRINSUT JuswAojdwaun
00°'0 %00°0 (00*001) 000 (00'00T) (0o0'00T) Yiq!
00°0 000 00°0 ue|d Juawa.iay dsAojdw3
T6'LLT %95'€T (S€'ST11'9) S9'v88'1 (00'000'8) (00'000'8) vl
00°0 00°0 000 aouelnsuy aakojdug
09'6£0'1 %02°05 (02'¥L¥'9) 08°'525'9 (00"000°€T) (00"000°€T) wl
000 000 000 (s1eys s 2ho)dw3) IseQ
69'16¢ %89'Ch (bT'058£2) 98'6vL'T (00'001'%) (00"001F) 1828
sJuelqunduy pasn % d]qejleAy spung saJjuelqunoul 396png |jejol SjuUlWpuUdWY pa3lqo 12ju3) P3lqo
/lemdy /seunyipuadxy /396png jewibLO qns 350D
ain ala
%00°0S :anjeredwo) Ajyjuol OIT : pund
/140 11 9beq 20z Joquiadag
Wd 6T:€ 5202/9/1 s /aeq sajueiquinduy pue sasmipuadxy Jo Juswanels oI :Aq pajeas)
SWelM J9IAL H L jowe) JUNoyy JO UMo] ainypuadxy jo Juswaels Do awen ejdwa)



000 000 00°0 Snosue|[aasin
00°0 %05°£T (66'682) 10°01T (00°00t) (00°00%) 6/
00°0 00'0 000 abejsod puy sanddns SoY0
$1'0TT %999 (€1°€085) L8966 (00"005'T) (00°005'1) 01€
00°0 000 000 [oAesL
0070 %00°0 (00°008) 000 (00°00%) (00°00%) 08¢
000 000 000 sBuipjing @dueusjule|ly puy Jledsy
000 %05'CC (00°52£'D) 00°5£9 (00°000°€) (00°000°€) 99¢
00°0 00'0 00°0 uoddng alemyos/aiempiey J19Induio)
000 %S9 (c0'820'T) L6'TL (00'001'1) {00°001'T) (174
00°0 000 000 SIDIAIDS [EIPa
000 %00°0 (0000T1) 00°0 (00°00T) (00'001) 15¢
00°0 000 00°0 SEDIAIBS UONEDIUNWIWIND 8410 PUY BuoydsfaL
00°0 %29 (85°2¢6) w9 (00"000°T) (c0'000'T) 24
00°0 000 000 in
€5°641 %65'TT (0£'0z6'€) 0£'6£0'T (00"000°s) (00°'000°S) 0vT
00°0 000 000 SSOIAIDS JUIBIU]
12°69T %19'TE (€£150'D) LT'86 (00'000°c) (00'000°€) 912
000 000 000 Buiuiel| puy uonedonp3 aakojdws
00'0 %00°0 {00"000'T) 000 (00'000°T) (00'000'1) 8v1
000 00°0 000 2oue.nsut JuswAojdwaun
90 %9092 (15°€01) 6b°9€ (00°0bT) (00°0bT) yigs
00°0 00'0 000 (3:eys s.1zA0jdwiz) 1520
12'68¢ %622 (8b'80£°0) T5'169'T (00"000'%) (00°000'%) i
00'0 0070 000 sabem
0b'8eL'E %09'8k (89'88¢£'c2) eI (00"005's%) (00"005°sP) X4
Aseiqry  008tP
00°0 000 000 puet
00°0 %000 (00°000'002) 000 (00'000°002) (00°000'002) 016
2ouelqunouz pasn % ajqejieAy spung saJueiquindug yebpng Jejol sjuawIpuDYy Pa(q0 193u3) palqo
/lenpy /seimypuadx3 /196png jeuiblio qns 150D
alwW alA
%0005 'aAnesedwo) Alyuol OTT : pung
/T Jo 21 9beq 70T Joquadag
Wd 6T:€ SC0T/9/T wil/9jeq saoueIqUINIUZ pue saanpuadxy jo Juawajels J9 1 :Ag pajeal)

Swel|im JD1AL

HETNY

Jowe) JUnoyy JO uMoy

ainypuadxg Jo JusWaelS DO aweN Ijejdwal



00'0 000 00'0
£6°L6¥'THT %8€'Eh (#+°092'9652) 95'66v'686'T (00°092'585"V) (00°092'585Y) OTT :punj.iog |ejoL
00°0 00°0 00°0 welbold Buipesy Jawwng
00°0 %ST°0T (90'264'T) ¥6°20¢ (00°000°2) (00"000'2) 12
00’0 000 000 Ja1do) asea bupelado
85'8¢ %t 8t (6£'£52) | ¥dra 24 (00°008) (00°008) S29
0070 000 00'0 17-02 el buel) Aeiqr
00'0 %00°0 (00°000'2) 00'0 (00'000') (00°000'2) 619
000 000 00'0 SM00d
8TTh %06'€9 (peeT6'n) 99'98¢‘E (00700£‘s) (00°00£’S) 06t
dduesquinduy pasn % 2lqejieAy spung sasueiquinoug jobpng |eioL SjulawpulaWy P9{q0 19Ul »a(q0
Jieny /saimyipuadx3y /3o6png |euibiiQ gns 350D
alwW aia
; 2 d A

%00'0S anneledwo) AjYIuol OIT : pund
/1 J0 €1 abeg 702 1oquiadaq
Wd 6T:€ 5202/9/1 2wl /areq ssouelquinouz pue saJmipuddxy jo Juawalels 91 :Aq palean)

SWel|[IM J9JAL

s

[ouuIE) JUNOY JO UMO]

alnypuadxy Jo Juswajels Do :awey jejdwa]



00°0 000 000 S90IIBS |eba
0S'€LL %6081 05°850' 05'8+0'6 (00'000°5) (00°000°S) 752
00°0 000 000 SOIAIRS |eIP3IN
00°0 %00'0€ (00"05¢€) 00°0ST (00°009) (00°008) 162
00°0 000 000 SSDIAIRS UOHEIIUNWILLOD JBYI0 puy duoydspL
88°€91 %LT°EE (0b'1p€'E) 09°859'T (00°000°s) (00°000°S) S¥T
00’0 000 000
09'ST6'ET %S9°85 (95°884'St) P 11599 (00"000°0TT) (00°000°01T) 0¥
00°0 000 000 senq
00°0 %16'Sh (00'061°T) 00°0107 (00°002'D) (00°002'27) S£T
00°0 000 00°0 SIDIAISS JPUIBIU]
8b°99 %986 (zr'108) 88°86€ (00°008) (00°008) 917
00°0 000 00°0 Bujuiel) puy uorednp3 saAojdwa
00°0 %000 (00'0002) 00°0 (00°000°2) (00'000'7) 8yl
00°0 000 000 @ouelnsuy JuswAojdwsun
0070 %EL'E (be'18p) 99°8T (00°00S) (00°00S) b1
000 00'0 00°0 uoijesuadulo) S,UdUBHOM
00°0 %58'96€ S9'T8bT §9'7¥8'61 (00"000°s) (00°000'S) 91
00'0 000 000 ueld Juawa.ey aAojdws
6v" ThL %EL 6T (£0"960'82) £6'€06'9 (00'000°5€) {(00"000'5€) el
00°0 000 0070 2oueInsu] a3Aojdw3g
0€'£29'T %L6'81 (¥6°519'8b) 90'H8E'TT (00°00009) (00'000°09) Wl
000 000 00°0 (a1eys s akojdwa) 1seQ
11'8v8 %ES'HE (S9'bL0°€T) GE'GT6'9 (00°000°02) {00°000°02) 1
00°0 00°0 000 sabem aWIMaA0
00849 %9/ LY (19's5€8'7) 6EHITL (00"000°ST) (00"000'sT) 44!
000 000 00°0 sabem
SL'SL0'TT %62 T (68'€zT'9eT) 11'944'88 (00°000'512) (00'000'5T12) 121
PMas  00ZZS
ouesqunduly Pasn % a|qejieAy spung soduRIqUINOUT 1o6png |ejoL sjuawpulawy Palqo 3us) Palqo
[remdy /seimyipuadxy /196png jewblo qns 150D
aLwW diA

%00°0§ 1aAesedwo) Ajyuol ZIb :puny
LT 40 pT 2beq 2oz 13quiedag
Id 6T:€ 5702/9/1 iswLL/a3eq seouelquindug pue saimipuadx3 Jo Juswajels W1 :Aq pajeald
SWel||im J9JAL 11950 jow.e) Junop Jo UMoy amnyipuadxg 4o Juswalels DO awen ejdwo)



000 00'0 00°0 SouBULIUIE puy Jleday uojels dwnd
00°0 %05'T (00'5£8'L) 00'S2T'T (00°000°52) (00'000'52) 19¢
00°'0 000 000 asuadx3 [on
PEUT %070 (Lev6T'E) £9°502'C (00°005'S) (00°005'S) 1€€
00°0 00°0 00°0 asuadxg Bupesado SPIYRA
000 %8E"0T (b0'18b'%) 96'81S (00°000'S) (00°000'S) g€
00°0 00°0 000 swopun puy Buiyopd
16'6S %8121 (6b°520°2) 1S'bL6 (00'000'8) (00°000°8) 9z¢
00'0 000 000 s{edwsyd
08'045'T %/8'9€ {£€'929'cT) £9'€/EL (00°000°02) (00°000°02) 443
00°0 000 000 sa)|ddng Bunesado
82°S79'T %968 (58'085'T) ST'6TH'ET (00'000'ST) (00°000°sT) 143
000 0070 00'0 abe1sod puy se2i|ddns 20140
PSEPS %T£°80T PSeh YS'EPS (00°'00%) (00'008) 1]43
00°0 000 00'0 S84 UOISSIWIWO)
00'Z€0'T %8409 (00'¥+8%) 00°9ST'2T (00°000°02) (00°000°02) 862
00°0 000 000 S3VIAIRS [eniIeRuUoD
86'9€5"bT %6L 1L £5°€8T'6 €5°€8T'S (00°000'8) (00°000°8) 067
00°0 00°0 00°0 [erelL
000 %000 (00"000°T) 000 (00'000'T) (00°000'T) 08¢
00°0 000 00°0 5199435 puy Specy sdueusjuE puy Jieday
00°€9S %64°0C (95°vp5'S) P'SSH'T (00'0002) (00°000°2) 892
00°0 000 000 S30IAISS BDURUSIUIRY puy JIedaY
052097 %96'9TT 76'569'T 76'S69'TT (00'000°0T) (00'000°0T) 092
000 000 00°0 poddng aiemyos/alempleH Jsenduwo)
000 %000 (00'000°T) 00’0 (00'000'T) (00°000'T) §52
00°0 000 000 saoinRs Bupeaubug
21°085'22 %obl'LLY 90°/¥5'SL 90°/b5'56 {00'000'02) (00'000°02) ¥52
0070 000 000 sas4 Buiypny puy bununodoy
00°0 %000 (00"000'2) 00°0 (00°000'2) (00'000'2) £s¢
souelquinduz Pasn % a|qejieAy spund s9ouRIqUINDUT 396png |ejoL sjuswpuswy 1Pa3lqo Jajua) Paiqo
/lemdy /seanypuadxy /396png |eulbli0 qns 150D
alkW alA

%0005 :aaneseduio] Ajyauoly ZTb : puny
LT 40 §1 9bed 0z Joquiadaqg
IWd 6T:€ §202/9/1 iowiL/eleq saduelquinduz pue saimyupuadx3 §o juawalels M :Aq pareasd
swel|jipm J9JAL HELN] [ouLIe) JUNOKY JO UMO, alnyipuadxg Jo Juswalels DO PweN ajejdwa)



000 000 000 soueuajulely 12300y 030Y/ssa1d WRd
00'0 %I2'S (08'12+'T) 07’8 (00°005°T) (00°008'T) 556
00°0 000 000 [esodsiq 96pn|S Ug
00°0 %lt'SE (zs'z97'28) 8Y°LEL'LT (00°000°05) (00°000°05) 756
000 000 000 juswdinbg
000 %000 (00°000's2) 000 (00'000's2) (00"000'52) 0v6
00°0 00°0 00°0 sableyD aInISS dueg
00°0 %000 (00'0z1) 00°0 (00°02T) (00°021) 169
00°0 00'0 000 1s3J3)u] BpLL
000 %0892 (91°265"p) $8'£09'T (00°000"9) (00'000°9) §£9
00°0 000 00'0 spuog Buipunysy xe1/AY €102
000 %000 (00'000°0%) 000 (00°000°0%) (00°000°0b) ¥19
00'0 00°0 000 5994 JWiad 33e3s
00°0 %000 (00°005'€) 000 (00°005°€) (00'005'€) 966
00°0 00°0 000 uonepaidag
00°0 %000 (00°0000¥2) 00°0 (00°000'0vT) (00°000°0%2) 112
000 00°0 000 [e3uay Juswdinby puy Assuiyoely
00°000's %0009 (00'000°01) 00°000'ST (00°000'52) {00"000's2) €€S
000 00°0 000 soueInsug
000 %000 (00°000°12) 000 (00'000'T2) (00°000'12) 018
00°0 000 00°0 snoaue|[Rasiiy
00°0 %6/'9T (o1°2¢8) 06'£9T (00'000'T) (00"000'T) 6Lb
000 000 000 NOLLONYLSNOD
$9'SLH'TT %LE9T (z9'81¥'52€°T) 8E T8S bLb (00'000°008'T) (00°000°008'1) 10b
00°0 00°0 000 aueuBUel puy Jledey jueld JoJemBISeM
69'0£6'€ %0b*LS {66'862'12) 10°10£'82 (00'000°05) (00°000°08) ¥9€
00°0 00'0 000 aoueudjulely puy Jleday auri Jomas
000 %000 (00'005'7) 00°0 (00°005'T) (00°005'1) €9¢
00'0 00'0 000 0uUeUIUIR|y puY Jleday dwng |enuapIsay
68065 %»8'8L (bT'1£8'ST) 98'871'65 (00°000'52) (0o0'000'52) 79¢
aouelquindug Pasn % a|qe|ieAy spung s9duesqunaug 3°bpng |ejol sjuswpuduy walqo 193Ud) P3[qO
/lempy [seanypuadx3 /196png Jeuiblo ans 150D
QLN diA

%00"0S :anfjetedwo] Ajyiuop ZIb : pund
LT 40 91 obey $270zZ 12quiadag
Wd 6T:€ §202/9/T 2wl /aeq saduUeIqUINIUZ pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juswajelis o9 :Aq pajeald
Swelip J9JAL HELT)] |ouLie) Junoy Jo umol aInyipuadxy Jo Juswalels Do :awep jejdwa)



000 000 000
9/'€bT1201 %TCEE (5€'929'6¥0°2) S9'€66'8T0°T (00'029'890°€) (00°029'890°€) <y :pungj log [ejoL
00°0 000 000 sJamolg jue|d 1amas
000 %00°0 (00°000°S) 000 (00'000's) (00"000'S) 956
ajueIqUINdUg Posn % a|qejieAy spung seauelquindul 1°6png [el01 sjuaWpuURWY Pfqo 133u?) Palqo
/lenpy /sainyipuadxy /1e6png jeuibo qns 350)
ain ala

%00°0S :annesedwo) Ajyjuop Iy : puny
LT 40 /7 obeq tzoT 1oquiadag
Wd 6T:€ 5202/9/1 swi] /eeq saduesquindug pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juawslels M1 :Aq pajeas)

swelf|im JIAL

uasn

[ouLIe) JUnoy JO uMoy,

ainyipuadxg Jo Juswalels Do :owep aejdwa]



Mount Carmel Fire Department

‘Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

January 2nd, 2025
To: James Stables, City Manager
Ref: December 2025 Monthly Report

The Mount Carmel Fire Department answered a total of 34 calls for service during the month of
December. This includes one structure fire and multiple vehicle accidents/medical responses.
Our total call volume for 2024 was 393 responses, this is up from 286 in 2023. Our department
has seen a 37.4% increase in call volume in just one year. Qur average dispatch to arrival time for
the year was 5:25 with a 90t percentile of 10:38. Our members have done a tremendous job
managing the increased warkload while continuing to progress our department and its services.

December is traditionally an extremely busy month for the fire department, and this December
proved to be true with the completion of the 57 annual Mount Carmel Santa Run and
Christmas Parade. Both events were a success, and | appreciate every person who assisted in
making these possible. Our annual hose and ladder testing was completed, this ISO and NFPA
requirement is essential for our efficiency and firefighter safety.

During December, our members completed a course on hoarding conditions during a structure
fire. We had four members take their Tennessee Commission on Firefighting Hazardous
Materials Awareness test, | am happy to say that all four passed and will move on to the
operations test in January. They are one step closer to obtaining their Firefighter | certification.

Thank you and the BMA for your continued support. | look forward to another great year.

Respectfully,
Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

100 EAST MAIN STREET, MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE 37645
T (423) 444-1027 E MCFD@MOUNTCARMELTN.GOV



T eso @ Total Record Volume By Incident Type

Custom v Jan1,2024 - Dec 31,2024 v

39%

393 :

INCIDENTS

I Releered G

366

DAYS
Inty

Jan 2e Fab 124 Mar ‘24 Apr'24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul'24 Aug 24 Sep 24 0Oct'24 Nov'24 Dec 24

YTy kRTED IR SE PR 32 TR b~ 1R s il

jan ‘24 Feb 24 Mar ‘24  Apr'24 May'24 Jun'24 Jul 24 Aug 24 Sep ‘24 Oct ‘24 Nov '24  Dec'24 Jan ‘25 Total

paaguciie 4 2 1 3 1 1 1 1

=~
-

17

(13) Mabite
rope
g:_ehpiclrgﬂr_e

{14) Natural
vegetation fire L 3 ! 5

{15) Cutside 1 1
rubblsh fire

gasisash{dadlcal 14 1 5 14 8 7 14 " i 4 g 10 118

{32Lllimlerge'ncy

meaica

service (EMS) 10 7 9 11 7 18 14 9 7 11 8 12 123
. incident

34) Search for 1 1
ast person

(35) Extrication,
. rescue i 1 2

(41)
Combustible/f... 1 1 2
spills &leaks

(42} Chemical
release, 1 1
reactlon, or

: toxic condition

i (44) Electrical

wlriEPlequlpm 2 1 1 5 1 2 12

. problem -

" {46) Accident,

- potential i 1 1 1 < { 1 4 4 3 20
accident

(51) Person in 1 1
distress

(53) Smoke, 1 . o
odor problem

(54) Animal
problem or 1 1 2
rescue

Page 1 of 2



Jan ‘24 Feb "24 iar '24 Aprtzs fay '24  Jun 24 Jul 24

55) Public 5
ge;lrice 5 1 1 Z P 1 1 3 2 2 20
assistance

(61)

Dispatched a
and canceled

en route

[GZJWmng

acalion, no 1 1 4 2 2 10
emergency

four

w
w
B
o
N
N
N
[
=1

LSS) Controlled 1 1 5 2 1 5
urning

(67) HazMat
release 1 1
investigation
w/no HazMat

(73) System or
detector 1 | 2 1 5
malfunction

(78) ;

Unintantional i 1 6
systermn/detect... 1 1 1 1

operation (no

fire)

UNK 1 1

[X]
L4

UNK

Total 43 26 27 39 22 45 36 27 n 30 33 34 393

Page 2 of 2



ft €SO

Total Record Volume By Incident Type

Custom v

Dec 1,2024 - Dec 31,2024 v

4
3
2
INCIDENTS
In Solacted T
1
DAYS
In L‘il-:r-:n 0 = — . e (TP T T T T TR T T ] " " —_— -
Dec2 Dec 4 Dec6 Dec8 Dec 14 Dec22  Dec24  Dec26  Dec28  Dec30
. | b ;
PP LG YO PN PO QECI 28 a2 ) Laahas

Week Ending

(11) Structure
Fire

(31) Medical
assist

(32) Emergency
medical
seryice (EMS)
incident

[44) Electrical
wiring/equipm.
problem’

(46) Accident,
potential
accident

(55) Public
service
assistance

(61)
Dispatched
and canceled
en route

62) Wrang
peation. no
amergency
foun

(74)
Unintentional

system/detect...

operation (no
- fire)

Total

12/1/24

12/8/24  12/15/24 12/22/24 12/29/24  1/5/25 1/12/25 1/19/25  1/26/25 2/2/25 2/9/25 2/16/25  2/23/25

1 1

3 3 1 2 1 10
; 5 3 2 1 12
1 1 2
1 1 1 e
2 2

1 1

1 1 2

1 1

6 10 10 & 2 3

Page 1 of 1



MOUNT CARMEL

%f&c! Zo pul dowr 1oeld

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING MINUTES

A special called meeting of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee Board of Mayor and Aldermen was held
at Town of Mount Carmel City Hall, 100 East Main Street, on January 16, 2025, at 5:30pm

CALL TO ORDER
5:30 pm by Mayor John Gibson

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Led by Vice-Mayor Bare and Alderman Shugart

ROLL CALL:

BMA Present

Absent

City Administration Present

Alderman Darby Patrick

Jim Stables, City Manager

Alderman Philip Binstock

Allen Coup, City Attorney

Alderman James Cross

Tyler Williams, CMFO/City Recorder

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANANANANANENAN

Mayor John Gibson

WELCOME FROM THE MAYOR
Mayor Gibson welcomed everyone

OLD BUSINESS

A. SECOND READING: Ordinance 24-539 Purchasing Policy

This ordinance will implement best practices recommended by the University of
Tennessee Municipal Technical Advisory Service, allowing for better efficiency,
effectiveness, and accountability in accomplishing the purchasing actions for the Town.

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Patrick




AYES

NAYS

OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIANENE NI NN N

Mayor John Gibson

NEW BUSINESS

A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Wastewater Treatment Plant Service Agreement

Temporary “Services Agreement” with Inframark, LLC to provide a Grade 2, or higher, certified
wastewater operator, lab technician and additional maintenance technicians, as needed. Will make
Town complaint with NPDES permitting requirements and satisfy TDEC notice of violation. The
sole purpose of this agreement is to bridge the gap of services until a more permanent solution can

be found.

Motion: Alderman Binstock
Second: Vice-Mayor Bare

AYES

NAYS

OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

AN NENE NN

Mayor John Gibson

ADJOURN
Motion: Alderman Shugart at 5:37pm
Second: Alderman Binstock
Approved: All present voting in favor

Approve:

Attest:

Tyler Williams, City Recorder

John Gibson, Mayor




MOUNT CARMEL

% /adwe. 2 pat ot saeld

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, Interim Town Administrator-City Manager

FROM: Tyler Williams, CMFO/City Recorder

DATE: January 23, 20235

RE: ORDINANCE NO. 24-537 (Second Reading)

SUMMARY:

Second Reading of Ordinance 24-537 Budget Amendment.

This amendment reflects changes in the FY25 budget due to grants being awarded to the
Town of Mount Carmel Fire Department and Police Department. The Fire Department was
awarded a $420,000.00 CDBG grant for the purchase of a fire truck ($80,000 match
required). The Fire Department was also awarded a $7,795.00 grant for the purchase of a
fire skid unit (no match required). The Police Department was awarded a $10,000.00 TN
Highway Safety Office High Visibility Grant (no match required).

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):

Finance, Police, Fire

FISCAL IMPACT:

Increase of revenues by $435,795.00. Increase of expenditures by $546,920.00
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff reccommends approval

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 24-537



MOUNT CARMEL

A place 2 put desn il
ORDINANCE # 24 — 537

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET AS PASSED
BY ORDINANCE # 24-532 OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE. BE
IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS, the Town of Mount Carmel adopted the fiscal year 2024-2025 budget by passage
of Ordinance Number 24-532 on May 24, 2024; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Tennessee state constitution, Section 24 of Article II, no public
money shall be expended except pursuant to appropriations made by law; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Municipal Budget Law of 1982, as found in the Tennessee Code
Annotated section 6-56-209, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen has the authority to authorize the
budget officer to transfer moneys from one appropriation to another within the same fund; and,
WHEREAS, Project priorities for the FY 2024 — 2025 have evolved;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE THAT CHANGES
BE MADE TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Ordinance Number 24-532 is hereby amended by the following for Revenues:

General Fund FY 2024-2025 FY 2024-2025
Original Budget Amended Budget

Total Revenue $4,032,310.00 $4,468,105.00



SECTION 2. Ordinance Number 24-532 is hereby amended by the following for Expenditures:

General Fund FY 2024-2025 FY 2024-2025
Original Budget Amended Budget

Total Appropriations: $4,646,760.00 $5,193,680.00

Fund Balance — Appropriated & _ 0 ) G __0 )

SECTION 3. The Board of Mayor and Alderman authorizes the CMFO/Recorder to make said
changes in the accounting system.

SECTION 4. This ordinance shall take effect upon publication after its final passage in a
newspaper of general circulation, the public welfare requiring it.

Voting by the Board, as follows, on December 19, 2024, First Reading:

Yes No
Alderman Patrick X L
Alderman Binstock X .
Alderman Cross N o
Alderman Shugart X -
Alderman Gilliam X -
Vice Mayor Bare X o
Mayor Gibson X o

Voting by the Board, as follows, on January 23, 2025, Second Reading and Public Hearing:
Yes No

Alderman Patrick
Alderman Binstock
Alderman Cross
Alderman Shugart
Alderman Gilliam
Vice Mayor Bare
Mayor Gibson

John Gibson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Tyler S. Williams, CMFO/Recorder



MOUNT CARMEL

\9@ fldfoe Zo pat st Aa.add

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, Interim Town Administrator-City Manager

FROM: Tyler Williams, CMFO/City Recorder

DATE: January 23, 2025

RE: ORDINANCE NO. 24-538 (Second Reading)

SUMMARY:

Second Reading of Ordinance 24-538 Official Depository for City Funds.

This ordinance amends the Municipal Code to properly reflect the T.C.A. requirements for
official depositories of municipal funds.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):
Administration

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval
ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 24-538



MOUNT CARMEL

A pluce 2 Ppul don; 400y
ORDINANCE # 24 - 538

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE AMENDING
TITLE 5 “MUNICIPAL FINANCE AND TAXATION,” CHAPTER 5
“MISCELLANEOUS,” SECTION 5-501, “OFFICIAL DEPOSITORY FOR CITY
FUNDS,” OF THE MOUNT CARMEL MUNICIPAL CODE

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That Section 5-501, “Official depository for city funds,” of Title 5, “Municipal
Finance and Taxation,” Chapter 5 “Miscellaneous,” of the Municipal Code be amended as

follows:

5-501. Official depository for city funds. The Town of Mount Carmel (“municipality”)
may contract with a bank or banks making the best proposal to become the depository of
city funds. The analysis of the proposals should consider the bank or banks proposing the
highest interest rate, potential service charges or other fees, factors affecting safety and
liquidity of municipal funds, and any other relevant factors. At least once every four (4)
years, the municipality shall reevaluate its depositories. The municipality shall base the
evaluation on proposals obtained from at least two (2) banks. The municipality shall
prepare a written evaluation of the proposals and preserve the evaluations for at least
three (3) years. See T.C.A § 6-56-110.

SECTION 2. Legal Status Provisions:

A. Conflict with Other Ordinances: In case of conflict between this Ordinance or any
part thereof, and the whole or part of any existing or future Ordinance of the Town of
Mount Carmel, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be held to apply unless
expressly provided otherwise therein.

B. Validity: If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this Ordinance shall be held
to be in doubt or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding
shall not affect any other section, clause, provision, or portion of this Ordinance
which is not of itself invalid or unconstitutional.



SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect upon publication after its final passage in a
newspaper of general circulation, the public welfare requiring it.

Voting by the Board, as follows, on December 19, 2024, First Reading:
Yes No

Alderman Patrick
Alderman Binstock
Alderman Cross
Alderman Shugart
Alderman Gilliam
Vice Mayor Bare
Mayor Gibson

|
o |>< |>< :>< :>< :N :><

Voting by the Board, as follows, on January 23, 2025, Second Reading:
Yes No

Alderman Patrick
Alderman Binstock
Alderman Cross
Alderman Shugart
Alderman Gilliam
Vice Mayor Bare
Mayor Gibson

John Gibson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Tyler S. Williams, CMFO/Recorder

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Allen Coup, City Attorney



MOUNT CARMEL

K place 2. pat.dswini koady

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, Interim Town Administrator-City Manager

FROM: James Stables, Interim Town Administrator-City Manager

DATE: January 23, 2025

RE: RESOLUTION NO. 25-643 BOARD OF MAYOR & ALDERMEN

MEETING RULES OF ORDER

SUMMARY:
This resolution sets forth local jurisdictional rules for meeting of the Board of Mayor and

Aldermen congruent and consistent with adopted Town ordinance, policy, procedure, and
the most current version of Roberts Rules of Order.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):
City Manager

FISCAL IMPACT:
None

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval

ATTACHMENTS:
(1) RULES OF ORDER for THE BOARD OF MAYOR & ALDERMEN, TOWN OF

MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE, 2025, version 1.0 (6 pages)



MOUNT CARMEL

A place to patilovine. £2et

RESOLUTION 25-643
RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING MEETING RULES OF ORDER
FOR THE BOARD OF MAYOR & ALDERMEN

BEFORE THE MAYOR AND ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL,
TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the Town of Mount Carmel wants to maintain efficiency and effectiveness in
governance while conducting official meetings, and,

WHEREAS, meetings of the elected officials of the Board of Mayor & Aldermen are intended
to conduct the business of the Town as orderly and expeditiously as possible, and;

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen wish to conduct the official business of the
Town in a fashion that allows for public understanding and input, and;

WHEREAS, the adoption of this resolution will allow for a smooth and businesslike process to
allow for civil discourse and successful completion of official Town business;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AN ALDERMEN
OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE, as follows

SECTION I. All workshops and meetings of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen will be
conducted utilizing these locally adopted rules of order in conjunction with all refenced
ordinances, policies, procedures, and the most current version of Robert’s Rues of Order.

SECTION II. All elected officials should remain familiar with the rules of order and their
specific duties and responsibilities as it pertains to moving the business of the Town during
meetings.

Be It Resolved, the 23" day of January 2025

This Resolution was duly considered and adopted by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, in and
for the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, this 237 day of January 2025.

John Gibson, Mayor

Attest:

Tyler Williams, Town Recorder



IL

II1.

IV.

Attachment (1)
RULES OF ORDER for THE BOARD OF MAYOR & ALDERMEN

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
2025

version 1.0

ROBERT RULES OF ORDER

If any questions shall arise which is not provided for in these rules, the same shall be
governed by the current updated version of Robert’s “Rules of Order” which is addressed
in the Town of Mount Carmel, Municipal Code-2010, Section 1-103 General rules of
order.

ACTS OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE
In case any rule conflicts with an Act of the State of Tennessee, the Act of the State of
Tennessee shall govern.

ELECTION OF THE VICE MAYOR OF THE TOWN GOVERNING
BODY

The vice mayor shall be nominated from the currently seated Board of Aldermen and
elected by a majority vote of the membership of the Town Elected Board. The vice mayor
remains in position until resignation, the next election cycle, or removal from the Board
of Aldermen.

DUTIES OF THE MAYOR
A. At the precise hour to which the Board of Mayor and Aldermen shall have gathered,
the Town Mayor shall call the gathering to order. Advising all addressing the Board to
address their comments and questions to the Mayor as the chair of the meeting.
B. The Mayor/Chair shall preserve order and decorum and may speak to points of order
in preference to other members.
C. The Mayor/Chair shall conduct the meeting business of the Town Elected Board in
the following order:
Call to order
Prayer
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Welcome from the Mayor/Chair-Proclamations
Approval/Correction of previous meeting minutes
Visitor Comments
Old Business
9. New Business
10. Board/Staff Comments
11. Adjournment
D. A question may be taken up out of order by a two-third vote of members present.

g0l MmOy WA (R 9 IDa—



VL

o

H.

If the chair is a member of the body, the chair must be surrendered to another prior to
taking part in any debate. When the Chair steps down to participate in debate, they
cannot return to the chair until the issue is disposed of in some manner. It is always
improper for the chair to voice an opinion or debate the pending issue while
acting as chair. The chair can answer questions, refer questions to the maker of
the motion, rule on parliamentary questions, etc., during the debate of any issue.
The chair can vote on any matter, if a member of the body.

In the absence of the Mayor, the Vice Mayor shall serve as the Chair. In the absence
of both the Mayor and Vice Mayor the Town Clerk shall call the Town Elected Board
to order and call the roll for the purpose of the election of a temporary chair.

The Mayor shall appoint all committees unless otherwise directed by a two-third vote
of the Town Elected Board.

DUTIES OF THE VICE-MAYOR

A.
B.

To fulfill the role of the Mayor/Chair when the Mayor is absent or unavailable.

Every member shall address the Chair by raising their hand to indicate that they
would like to speak, and after he or she has been recognized by the Chair, proceed
with his or her remarks. The member may, after he or she has been recognized by
the Chair, at the member’s discretion, make their remarks. No other member shall
speak or be recognized unless he or she rises to a point of order or other motion
which shall have preference while the speaker who has the floor makes his or her
remarks. Any member who also wishes to speak shall make it known by raising
their hand and will be recognized in order of request and recognition by the chair.

DUTIES OF THE ALDERMEN

A.

Every member shall address the Chair by raising their hand to indicate that they
would like to speak, and after he or she has been recognized by the Chair, proceed
with his or her remarks. The member may, after he or she has been recognized by
the Chair, at the member’s discretion, make their remarks. No other member shall
speak or be recognized unless he or she rises to a point of order or other motion
which shall have preference while the speaker who has the floor makes his or her
remarks. Any member who also wishes to speak shall make it known by raising
their hand and will be recognized in order of request and recognition by the chair.
No member may maintain the floor for longer than five (5) minutes and may not
be recognized more than twice, each time maintaining the floor for no longer than
five (5) minutes while speaking on any one matter or motion under consideration,
except by a majority vote of the members. No member will be allowed to assign
their remaining time to another member.

Motions to limit debate shall require an affirmative vote of two-thirds of those
members present for passage.

All motions shall be debatable except for the following:

1. To adjourn the meeting

2. Lay on the table

3. For the previous question
Provided, however, the original proponent of ary motion sought to be tabled shall
have the right to be heard after the motion is made and before the motion to table is



VIL

K.

put to a vote. Also provided that a member who speaks both for and against a matter
cannot "call for the previous question."
When any question or motion is under debate by the Town Elected Board, the
following motions shall be in order and may be entertained by the Chair:

1. To adjourn the meeting

2. To recess the meeting

3. To lay on the table

4. For the previous question

5. To postpone to a day certain
6. To commit

7. To amend

8.

To postpone indefinitely

Each of the said motions shall take preference in the order set out herein.
Any question or motion may be put to the members by a "voice vote" at the
discretion of the Chair, unless otherwise required by law, provided, however, that
any one (1) member of the membership may request a roll call vote of the
membership.

Upon a roll call vote, any member may change his or her vote before the result of
the vote is announced and the Clerk or Chair shall give any member one
opportunity to change his or her vote prior to announcing the result of the vote.
Anytwo (2) members of the Town Elected Board may appeal to the Town
Elected Board from any ruling of the Chair and a majority of the members of the
Town Elected Board shall decide the appeal.

A meeting of the Town Elected Board, or any committee of the Town Elected
Board can at any time be called into recess by a majority vote. A recess can be
defined as anywhere from a short break until an announced time up to the next
regularly scheduled meeting of the Town Elected Board or committee. Recesses
cannot be scheduled for longer than the next scheduled meeting.

When a motion to adjourn or recess has been made and failed, the Chair shall not
entertain another motion to adjourn or recess until some business has been
transacted since the last motion to adjourn or recess was voted upon.

A "session" is to be defined as a "complete meeting" for purposes of these rules.

RESOLUTIONS

A.

Every proposed resolution shall be word processed or legibly handwritten in ink
and filed with the Town Clerk in the appropriate form which must be completed
entirely, except a proposed resolution need not have a seconding member at the
time of filing, and information after.

The Town Clerk shall maintain a file specifically for "Proposed Resolutions,”
which shall be at all times complete with any attachments, and which shall remain
at all times in the office of the Clerk and be available to the public. The Clerk
shall file all proposed resolutions therein and shall note the date of filing on each
and maintain a numbering system for said file.

An amendment to a resolution shall not delay its consideration for passage or
rejection, but any motion to amend which would materially or substantially
change the original resolution should be ruled out of order by the Chairman. The



VIIL

motion to amend a resolution may be stated orally, but the amendment must be
legibly handwritten or typewritten on any kind of plain paper and handed to the
Chair for reading prior to voting on the amendment.

. Any resolution presented for consideration may be retracted or withdrawn by the

sponsoring member of the Town Elected Board, or their proxy until a vote has
been called for on the resolution.

Roll call votes shall be taken for Resolutions.

Upon final action being taken by the Town Elected Board on a proposed
resolution, the Town Clerk shall record the result thereon; and shall also record
the number of ayes and the number of nays, from the roll call vote taken.

ORDINANCES

A.

o

Every proposed ordinance shall be considered and adopted on two (2) separate days.
Each ordinance, or the caption of each ordinance, shall be published after its final
passage in a newspaper of general circulation in the municipality. No ordinance shall
take effect until the ordinance, or its caption is published.

The Town Clerk shall maintain a file specifically for "Proposed Ordinances," which
shall be at all times complete with any attachments, and which shall remain at all
times in the office of the Clerk and be available to the public. The Clerk shall file
all proposed ordinances therein and shall note the date of filing on each and
maintain the ordinance numbering system for said file. The Town Clerk maintains
the responsibility to ensure the publishing required is completed, upon approval by
the Town Elected Board.

An amendment to a ordinance shall not delay its consideration for passage or
rejection, but any motion to amend which would materially or substantially
change the original submitted ordinance should be ruled out of order by the
Chairman. The motion to amend a ordinance may be stated orally, but the
amendment must be legibly handwritten or typewritten on any kind of plain paper
and handed to the Chair for reading prior to voting on the amendment.

Roll call votes shall be taken for Ordinances.

Upon final action being taken by the Town Elected Board on a proposed
ordinance, the Town Clerk shall record the result thereon; and shall also record
the number of ayes and the number of nays, from the roll call vote taken.

The Town Clerk shall preserve the original copy of all ordinances in a separate
ordinance book.

COMMITTEES

A.

Internal Committees of the Town Elected Board that are appointed by the Chair of
the Town Elected Board , or in compliance with The Mount Carmel Municipal
Code, Title 2, and any other applicable ordinances of the Town.

Special, or "ad hoc," committees may be appointed from time to time by the
Mayor and can consist of any number of Town Elected Board members and/or
members of the general public. These committees will serve based on need and
will be dissolved once the need has been resolved.

All committees shall be advisory in nature and shall not bind the Town Elected
Board as a whole in any of their acts except as specifically provided by state law



XL

or resolution of the Town Elected Board. They shall have no power to prevent or
delay the consideration of any motion or resolution by the Town Elected Board as
a whole.

D. Committees shall study any proposed resolution or other matter referred to them
by the Chair or the Governing Body. The Chairman of each committee, or a
member designated by him or her, shall have the duty to report to the Town
Elected Board as a whole, the committee's recommendation, and the reason
therefore, on the acceptance or rejection of any matter or proposed resolution
being considered by the Governing Body. Any member of the committee may
make a minority report. Should the committee chair, or his or her representative
announce to the Town Elected Board that the committee has not had sufficient
time to study the matter or proposed resolution under consideration, a vote on the
proposed resolution shall not be delayed thereby, except by appropriate motion
and passage thereof by a majority of the Town Elected Board.

E. Committees shall elect among themselves by simple majority vote of the
committee members a chair, vice-chair, and secretary and any other officers
desired. The Rules of Order of the Committees shall not conflict with the rules of
the Town Elected Board.

F. Committee meetings may be called for a reasonable time and place by the committee
chairman. Meetings may also be called by three (3) other members, upon notifying
the Town Elected Board Chair and the Town Clerk, and the other members of the
committee. At least three (3) days adequate public notice shall be given to the general
public and all committee members prior to any meeting.

G. A quorum of any committee shall consist of one more than half of the total
committee members, and no business shall be conducted if a quorum is not
present.

H. Committee votes can be taken by voice vote or roll-call vote at the discretion of
the committee chair or substitute for the committee chair who is conducting the
meeting.

I. Nothing herein shall require a committee to consider only those matters referred
to it by the Town Elected Board or the Chair, and it shall be the duty of each
committee to investigate and acquaint itself with the areas of its responsibility
and to bring before the Town Elected Board any matter which needs to be
considered in the interest of the welfare of the citizens of the Town.

SUSPENSION OR AMENDMENT
Any Rules of Order herein may be suspended or amended by the affirmative vote of
two-thirds of the members present.

MEETING NOTICES AND AGENDAS

Proper notice shall be given for each meeting of the Governing Board and its

committees as follows:

A. Notice of Regular and Special Called Meetings. The Town Clerk shall give
adequate public notice of Town Elected Board meetings and the agenda for said
meeting. Per State of Tennessee TCA 8-44-1, the notice and agenda will be
accessible to the public at least 48 hours prior to the meeting by posting it on the



XII.

XIIL

B.

Town’s website at www.mountcarmeltn.gov. The Town Elected Board may
consider matters not on the posted agenda provided the bylaws are followed.
Notice of Committee Meetings. For an internal committee meeting of a Town
Elected Board Committee, the Town Clerk shall give adequate public notice of
such meeting.

All meetings of the governing body are subject to open meetings requirements

and shall reserve a time for public comment so that the public may speak on

matters germane to items on the agenda.

1. Citizens wanting to speak will be required to list their name, address, email
address, and topic or issue they want to speak about on a provided sign in
sheet until the start of the meeting. At the start of a meeting, the list will be
given to the chair, and speakers will be taken in order of how they signed the
sheet. At the chair's discretion, citizens who have not signed in may or may
not be allowed to speak.

2. Ifseveral citizens appear to speak on the same topic or issue, the chair will have
the authority to ask the group to appoint from one to three citizens to speak
on the issue.

3. Public comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, and any
remaining time left shall not be added to another speaker's allotted time.

MEETING DISRUPTIONS

A.

Any person that prevents or disrupts any meeting through disturbance of the peace,
such as, unruly applause after warning, stamping of feet, whistling, using profane
language, shouting or any other similar demonstrations will be asked to leave the
meeting, and if they refuse will be escorted from the meeting by law enforcement
officers. A violation of this section is a Class A misdemeanor (TCA 39-17-306),
punishable by up to eleven (11) months and twenty-nine (29) days of imprisonment
and/or a fine not to exceed two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00)

At no time is anyone to approach the dais/tables where Town Elected Board
members and Town Staff are seated for workshops or meetings, unless invited to
do so by the Chair.

Community members addressing the Town Elected Board are to address the Chair
with their issues and comments only.

ADOPTION OF RULES OF ORDER
Any rule of order or procedure previously adopted by the Governing Body, which is in
conflict with, or preempted by, these rules is hereby repealed.



MOUNT CARMEL

A ptace o pat dasr saell
Ve 7

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, Interim Town Administrator-City Manager

FROM: Tyler Williams, CMFO/City Recorder

DATE: January 23, 2025

RE: RESOLUTION NO. 25-644

SUMMARY:

Discussion and Consideration of Resolution 25-644, which is authorization by the Board to
invest an additional $1,000,000.00 into the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).
Current interest rate is 4.56%

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):

Finance

FISCAL IMPACT:

An approximate additional $3,500-$4,500 per month in interest income.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution No. 25-644



MOUNT CARMEL

A pitace o pot dosns deati
RESOLUTION 25-644

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
AUTHORIZING AN ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT IN THE TENNESSEE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL

WHEREAS, the Town of Mount Carmel approved investment of Town funds into the
Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool (“LGIP”) by Resolution 24-637; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Mount Carmel recognizes the benefits of investing additional funds in
LGIP to maximize return on idle cash and enhance the financial stability of the Town; and;

WHEREAS, an additional investment in LGIP aligns with the Town's commitment to prudent
financial management and safeguarding public funds;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting at
Mount Carmel, Tennessee, on this 23rd day of January, 2025, that:

SECTION 1. The Town of Mount Carmel CMFO is hereby authorized to make an additional
investment into LGIP in the amount of $1,000,000.00.

SECTION 2. The CMFO will continue to provide monthly reports to the Board of Mayor and
Aldermen on the performance of LGIP investments.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately, the public welfare requiring it.

ADOPTED this 23" day of January, 2025.

John Gibson, Mayor
Attest:

Tyler Williams, Town Recorder



MOUNT CARMEL

%/dee- % puot dawist sa.all

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: Tyler Williams, CMFO/Recorder

FROM: John Gibson, Mayor

DATE: January 23, 2025

RE: DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION: Mayor’s Committee Appointments

SUMMARY:

Discussion and Consideration of the Mayor’s Committee Appointments
REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):

Mayor

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

N/A

ATTACHMENTS:

List of Mayor’s Committee Appointments



MOUNT CARMEL

A place %o puut desun gaels

MAYOR’S COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

Library
Syble Trent

Rebecca Cornwell
Naomi Luckeet
April Stovall
Phyllis Stewart
Barbara Cogliano
John Gibson

Park

1. Philip Binstock
2. Mindy Shugart
3. Bryan Erasmus
4. John Gibson

5. Regina Perkins
6. [Vacant]

7. [Vacant]

8. [Vacant]

9. [Vacant]

Planning
. Jim Vaughn

. Adam Hagood (County)
. John Gibson

. Garrett White

. Don Carter

. Bob Larkins

. Darby Patrick

. Bryan Erazmus

9. [Vacant]

0NV B WN

Outreach

Mindy Shugart
Darby Patrick
Merrilyn Price
Regina Perkins
Savanah White
(John Gibson ex eff)

Beer

James Cross

Jim Gilliam

Nathan Hawkins

Regina Perkins

Casey Salyer

David Larson, Police Chief
Jim Stables, City Manager



